
Select Committee Agenda

1

Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee
Thursday, 17th December, 2015
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Neighbourhoods and Communities Select 
Committee, which will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Thursday, 17th December, 2015
at 7.00 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

A Hendry,   Directorate of Governance
email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  Tel: 
01992 564246

Members:

Councillors M Sartin (Chairman), H Brady (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, R Gadsby, L Hughes, 
R Jennings, L Mead, A Mitchell, S Neville, A Patel and B Surtees

SUBSTITUTE NOMINATION DEADLINE:

18:00

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

(Director of Governance) To report the appointment of any substitute members for the 
meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance). To declare interests in any items on the agenda.

In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.

This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Thursday, 17 December 2015

2

Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.

Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter.

4. REVIEW OF WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION ARRANGEMENTS  (Pages 
3 - 8)

Members and residents are invited to take part in a review of the new domestic waste 
and recycling contract let by Epping Forest District Council.

Attending the meeting will be:
 Consultant Len Attrill fielding questions relating to procurement;
 Roger Edwards, Managing Director if Biffa answering questions relating to the 

first 6 months of the contract; and
 Environment Portfolio Holder, Councillor Will Breare-Hall and the Director of 

Neighbourhoods, Derek Macnab will be on hand to answer questions regarding 
the revised 4 day week service.

1) Attached (for background information) is a copy of the scoping report that went 
to the meeting of the Neighbourhood and Community Services Select Committee on 
15 September 2015.

2) Also attached is a copy of the comments and questions received when this 
agenda went to print.



Report to Neighbourhood and 
Community Services Select 
Committee

Date of meeting: 15 September 2015
 
Subject:  Scope of Review of Waste and Recycling 
Collection Arrangements

Officer contact for further information:  Derek Macnab (01992 564050)

Committee Secretary:  A Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That Members consider the scope of the Review of the Council’s Waste and Recycling 
Collection Arrangements.

Report:

(1) The Council’s contract with Sita, its previous waste, recycling and street cleansing 
contractor, came to an end after a seven year period on 3 November 2014.  The process of 
awarding a new contract began in 2013, with competitive dialogue chosen as the 
procurement methodology, in recognition of the scale and complexity of the contract.

(2) At the final tender stage, all the remaining contractors bid on both a five-day collection 
and a four-day collection basis.  The most advantageous tender, in terms of price and quality, 
was submitted by Biffa Municipal Ltd, who were appointed by Council in May 2014.  The 
contract mobilisation and handover went well and Biffa performed satisfactorily during the 
period from November 2014 up until May 2015, during which time they were operating the 
previous five-day collection arrangements.

(3) However, following the switch to the four-day collection schedule and the introduction 
of new vehicles and technology on 12 May, it quickly became apparent that the contractor 
was struggling to provide the service required of them.  Over a period of several weeks, an 
unacceptably high level of missed collections were reported and the service is yet to fully 
stabilise.  The Council’s Environment Portfolio Holder, believing that it is very important to 
establish the reasons behind this service failure, not only to help in rectifying any ongoing 
problems and achieving an acceptable level of future service, but will also help in identifying 
any lessons for the Council, with respect to the letting of other major service contracts.

(4) To this end, the Environment Portfolio Holder formally requested that Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee undertake a review on his behalf, the outcomes to be formally reported 
back to Cabinet.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee subsequently agreed the request and 
determined that the Neighbourhoods and Communities select Committee was best placed to 
undertake the review by virtue of their Terms of Reference.

The Review Process

(5) Given the likely level of both Member and Public interest, particularly with respect to 
the introduction of the revised 4-day collection arrangements, it has been proposed that an 
additional meeting of the Select Committee will be dedicated to this single subject.  Given the 
current Working Programme of the Committee, the availability of external contributors to the 
review and to allow a period of time for the contract to fully stabilise, a date of the 17 
December 2015, has been identified.



(6) In order to ensure that the review focuses on the main issues that Members may wish 
to explore, this report seeks to establish the scope of the review and how the meeting will be 
practically undertaken.

(7) In order to stimulate discussion, a proposed draft format is outlined below.  Members 
are asked to comment and identify any other issues they would like to be addressed.  In 
addition to the Environment Portfolio Holder and the Council’s Lead Officers on Waste and 
Recycling, it is intended that Senior Representatives of Biffa Municipal will be present along 
with Len Attrill, the Consultant from White Young and Green, who supported the Council 
through the procurement process.  They will be invited to give evidence and answer 
questions at appropriate intervals.

Proposed Structure and Scope of Review

It is proposed that the review is broken down and undertaken in 4 parts, covering the 
following issues and allowing for questions.

Part One – Procurement Process

i. Why the Council elected for Competitive Dialogue;
ii. The Procurement Process and Key Considerations;
iii. Contractors’ Service Improvements identified through Competitive Dialogue;
iv. Rationale behind the adoption of 4-Day Collection;
v. Final Tender Evaluation and Award.

In attendance White Young and Green.

Part Two – Mobilisation and First 6 months of Contract

i. Mobilisation in run-up to Contract Start Date November 2014;
ii. Operation of 5 Day Service during initial 6 months;
iii. Procurement of new fleet and depot relocation;
iv. Preparation for Service Change to 4 Day Collection;
v. Communication/Information to residents.

In attendance Biffa Municipal.

Part Three – 

i. Revised Arrangements from the 12 May 2015;
ii. Problems encountered by Residents. Type and Scale;
iii. Operational issues faced by Contractor;
iv. Remedial Actions and Recovery Plan;
v. Current Performance of Contract and Future Prospects.

In attendance Biffa Municipal.

Part Four – Conclusions and Key Recommendations

On the basis of what has been identified through the review process, to reach a set of 
conclusions around what could have been done better and to recommend any key 
considerations with respect to how the Council could improve procurement and 
implementation of any future major service contracts.



Public Participation

Given that in the 2 month period from the 12 May 2015, the Council was in receipt of 17,000 
enquiries regarding approximately 5400 missed collections, it is not unreasonable to expect a 
considerable amount of public interest in the review.  In order to maximise participation, 
whilst at the same time avoiding unnecessary duplication, it is proposed that the review 
meeting is publicised and residents are asked to register an interest in asking a question in 
person/or in writing, with an indication of what they would like to ask.  Thereafter, depending 
on the response, a decision will be taken on how the practicalities will be managed. However, 
it is the intention that residents will have the opportunity to attend and address questions.

Timing

The meeting is planned to commence at 7.00 p.m. with 50 minutes allowed for each Part with 
Questions.  This would allow 30 minutes at the end to identify key findings and 
recommendations. The meeting to conclude by 10.00 p.m.





Waste Review Meeting
Public Questions and Comments Received by Sunday 6 December 

2015

Comment: 

Observations:
- routes seem poorly planned eg two waste lorries trying to go in different directions down 
the same road at the same time
- vehicles and workers seem to have a lot of "down time" when they're parked up around the 
district, eg back the shops in Epping and at High Beach
- workers don't seem to be inclined to hurry - moving as slowly as possible carrying as little 
rubbish as possible often uncaring as to the fact that they are blocking roads
- longer working hours mean roads are blocked by the waste lorries in both the morning and 
evening rush hours
- drivers routinely leave vehicle cab whilst the engine is running
- overall, this seems a far worse service than that of the previous contractor

B James

Questions:

(1) I would like to ask the following;

Is there a protocol regarding how wheeled bins and recycling receptacles are returned once 
they have been emptied? On our collection day when I walk my daughter to school in the 
morning the bins are neatly lined up along residents boundaries but when I return in the 
afternoon after the bins have been emptied they are often bunched up and left blocking 
pavements. It is not unusual to have to step into the road to get around a blocked path, 
further complicated by parked vehicles. This is difficult enough with an older child and a dog 
so I can only imagine how difficult it would be for a parent with a toddler and/or pram or 
someone with mobility issues. Also, the smaller recycling receptacles such as the blue bins 
or kerbside caddies can become a tripping hazards when left in the middle of the path 
especially on darker afternoons. Would the Council or the resident be responsible if there 
were an accident?

K Partridge

(2) I've noticed that since the contractor has changed, they have been happy to take 
side waste, empty overfilled black bins, and take items that are clearly garden / food waste / 
recyclable that are present in and beside black bins in our road. They are clearly recyclable , 
because free recycling bags are being used for the residual waste, and as the bins / side 
waste are in clear bags, it is obvious what is in them. The new contractors seem happy to 
empty the overfilled black bins and remove the side waste too, even though a lot of the 
waste should be in a green bin, or put out for recycling.

So my question is, have the separation of waste requirements been relaxed please?

M Shepherd




	Agenda
	4 Review of Waste and Recycling Collection Arrangements
	Comments & Questions


